SOUTH ATLANTIC FISHERY MANAGEMENT COUNCIL

MACKEREL COMMITTEE

Charleston Marriott Hotel Charleston, South Carolina

September 18, 2014

SUMMARY MINUTES

Mackerel Committee:

Ben Hartig, Chairman Mark Brown Mel Bell Jack Cox

Dr. Roy Crabtree Dr. Michelle Duval
Jessica McCawley Charlie Phillips
Doug Haymans Zack Bowen
Anna Beckwith Pres Pate

Council Members:

Lt. Morgan Fowler Dr. Wilson Laney Chester Brewer Chris Conklin

Council Staff:

Julia Byrd

Bob Mahood Gregg Waugh
Mike Collins John Carmichael
Dr. Kari MacLauchlin Amber Von Harten
Kim Iverson Dr. Mike Errigo
Julie O'Dell Myra Brouwer
Chip Collier Dr. Brian Cheuvront

Observers/Participants:

Monica Smit-Brunello
Phil Steele
Scott Sandorf
Jessica Stephen
Chris McDonough

Dr. Bonnie Ponwith
Kevin Anson
Pat O'Shaughnessy
Jeff Radonski

Additional Observers Attached

The Mackerel Committee of the South Atlantic Fishery Management Council convened in the Topaz Room of the Charleston Marriott Hotel, September 18, 2014, and was called to order at 9:25 o'clock a.m. by Chairman Ben Hartig.

MR. HARTIG: All right, we'll bring the Mackerel Committee to order. The first item of business is approval of the agenda. Are there any changes to the agenda? I have one under other business that we need to talk about. When we prohibited the sale of bag limit king mackerel, we had an allowance for the Shark Drift Gillnet Fishery off Florida. We allowed them a two-fish bag limit, to be able to keep that and sell that. I think Monica has actually researched that and we'll talk to her about that at that time. Doug.

MR. HAYMANS: If it's all right under other business, I would also give you a very brief report on tournaments in Georgia under the new system.

MR. HARTIG: Okay, great! Any other changes to the agenda? Seeing none; the agenda is approved. The next item of business is approval of the June 2014 minutes. Are there any changes, deletions or corrections to the minutes? Seeing none; the minutes are approved. That brings to the status of commercial catches versus ACL; and that is under Attachment 1; and I guess Phil is going to do that.

MR. STEELE: Our king mackerel season, as you know, lasts from March 1 of this year until February 28 of next year. Right now for kings we're at about 21 percent of the quota at some 798,752 pounds. For Spanish, the same season. We're at about 26 percent, roughly, of the quota at 739,186 pounds. That's it for commercial.

DR. MacLAUCHLIN: You guys got updated commercial landings and then updated codified text for the Framework Amendment 2 yesterday afternoon to replace those attachments. I just wanted to let you know.

MR. HARTIG: Okay, so that's in our inbox in e-mail. All right, any questions of Phil? All right, status of recreational catches versus ACL; and that is under Attachment 2; Jessica.

MS. STEPHEN: Okay, you guys have seen this slide before. I just remind you we're using MRIP or MRFSS calibrated back to MRIP; and this is up to Wave 3 for the data we have available right now. For cobia, for 2012 we were at 73 percent of the quota. Keep in mind king mackerel and Spanish mackerel do have the late start of the fishing season in March through February 28.

For 2012/2013 for king mackerel we were at 26 percent and for Spanish mackerel we were at 54 percent. Moving on to the 2013/2014 season with cobia, we were at 79 percent, and that was just for 2013. For 2014, it is not in this slide, but we're up at 42 percent; and again that's just for the MRIP Waves 1 through 3 and does not include headboat. For king mackerel we are at 15 percent for the 2013/2014 season and 72 percent for Spanish mackerel.

These are similar charts showing back in time the landings and the graphs showing where we are in relation to the ACLs; and we are under the ACLs for the past two years and currently are as

well. For Spanish mackerel, here are the landings and the graphic showing where we are in relation to the ACL. Once again, we were under the ACL for the past three years and currently very well under the ACL. That's all I have.

MR. HARTIG: Any questions about the recreational catches of Spanish mackerel, king mackerel and cobia? Seeing none; thank you very much. All right, that brings to the status of amendments under formal review; and I guess Phil is going to do that.

MR. STEELE: Amendment 20A; I won't reiterate all the text there. The final rule published on June 16 and became effective July 16. Amendment 20B would modify the commercial hookand-line trip limits for Gulf Migratory Group King Mackerel. It changed the fishing year for Gulf Migratory Group King Mackerel for the Eastern and Western Zone; established transit provisions for travel through areas that are closed to king mackerel fishing; established regional ACLs for Atlantic Migratory Group King Mackerel and Spanish Mackerel; and modified the frame work procedure.

This rule and a number of other rules right now are kind of on hold, waiting for our Protected Resources folks to finish their consultations as result of the new coral listings and of the critical habitat for bottom longline. Now the Mackerel Framework 2013, also; it would allow Atlantic Migratory Spanish Mackerel harvested with gillnet gear in the South Atlantic in excess of the trip limit to be transferred to another federally permitted vessel that has not yet harvested the trip limit.

The proposed rule for the framework amendment published in the Federal Register on March 19 and the final rule is under review right now in the regional office. The Mackerel Framework Amendment 1 would increase the ACLs for Spanish mackerel in the South Atlantic and Gulf of Mexico. The proposed rule for the framework published in the Federal Register on July 31 with the comment period ending September 2. The final rule package is under development in the region right now. That's it, Mr. Chairman.

MR. HARTIG: Any questions of Phil? Phil, 20B is being held up by the Protected Resources; I think that's what I got out of that review. Aren't we having a consultation on the CMP's Fishery right now; isn't that ongoing? Monica.

MS. SMIT-BRUNELLO: Yes; it is; and two rules have come out recently. One was designating critical habitat for a certain portion of the loggerhead sea turtles; and then another was a recent coral listing final rule. When those come out, we have to make sure that we look at each fishery management plan action.

Then we have to look at each FMP and see whether we should reinitiate consultation; and if not, then that's fine; but if we should, are these things not likely to adversely affect or do they need a biological opinion and all that sort of thing. This is what is going on in the region right now; and there are several rules in the queue that are waiting for these determinations for all the FMPs, from snapper grouper to mackerel to coral – no, coral I think we're finished with; but there are a number of things. I believe, yes, consultation is ongoing mackerel; and we're trying to work out

all the ESA requirements as it pertains to these kinds of FMP amendments. We think we have that almost completely resolved.

DR. DUVAL: I'm a little confused. If a rule has already passed, then you don't deal with it; but the ones that are in the hopper you do? Maybe I'm misunderstanding what you're saying. I guess that's what it sounds like; because 20B is still under review and a determination has come out on corals and the critical habitat for sea turtles; that because it is in the hopper, that needs to be reviewed. It just seems counterintuitive that you wouldn't review other rules that are already finalized and on the books.

MS. SMIT-BRUNELLO: And you do. I think that I didn't explain it very well. We have to look at all the fishery management plan actions as they relate to these recent protected resource rules. Michelle, you're absolutely right; I think what I meant to say is that we have the determinations — I'll just leave it at that; so, yes, we have to, because my explanation would further confuse you and it doesn't matter. We're looking at all those kinds of things, ESA-related things to the Magnuson Act.

DR. DUVAL: And I don't need to be confused at this late date in the game; so thank you.

MR. HARTIG: Under one of your last sentences that we're almost done was good, too. All right, that brings us to the Public Hearings Report.

DR. MacLAUCHLIN: That's a PDF portfolio so there are actually three files in there. The first is the comment summary, which is very brief because as you guys have heard, there weren't a lot of folks at the hearings this time around. At the hearings we did not have any testimony on the record, but I did have one attendee in Cocoa Beach.

He supported Alternative 4 and then also recommended the council consider a provision for a 10 percent overage if the unlimited trips are removed. This was kind of an informal discussion; and I asked him if he wanted to speak on the record, but he said, no, he just wanted to tell Ben. We also received one written comment from the East Coast Fisheries Section of the Southeastern Fisheries Association. That is also included in Attachment 3; and they also support Alternative 4.

MR. HARTIG: Any questions about the Public Hearing Report? Seeing none; that brings us to Coastal Migratory Pelagic Framework Amendment 2; and that's Attachments 4A through 4C; an overview by Kari.

DR. MacLAUCHLIN: I'm going to walk through the decision document. That is Attachment 4C. Yesterday afternoon you also received three PDF attachments for 4B; and those are updated codified text. The reason why you have three is because there is codified text for any of the alternatives for when you select your alternative.

Going through this for a little background just to remind you about the trip limit and quota system for Florida for Atlantic Spanish mackerel has been around since 1992 and tweaked a little bit. There is an adjusted quota that triggers the step-down and then a period of unlimited trips

and then weekend trip limits. Then it drops down to 500 pounds when the adjusted quota is caught.

The fishery has changed and regulations have changed. Then you also have pending Amendment 20B, which is going to set up a northern and southern zone. The southern zone is South Carolina, Georgia and Florida. This would make all the trip limits consistent for the whole southern zone instead of Florida having its own.

The expected schedule is for you guys to review the public input, select a preferred alternative and then approve for submission to the Secretary of Commerce at this meeting. Because of the framework procedure, which will change once 20B goes through, the Gulf Council also has to review this framework amendment.

They'll take a look at that in October and approve; and then we'll send it in October/November, and then hopefully implementation in early 2015. I have in the decision document just some background information. Table 1 is the current trip limits; so north of the Georgia/Florida State Line Boundary is 3,500 pounds; and then you have the Florida trip limit system, which starting on December 1 has unlimited weekdays, 1,500 pound weekends.

Once 75 percent of the adjusted quota has been landed, it goes to 1,500 pounds all the time. When 100 percent of the adjusted quota is landed, it is 500 pounds. Then once the ACL is met, then 100 percent of the quota goes to zero. There will also be some – I have in here the ACLs and then the proposed ACLs, which are in Framework Amendment 1, which the final rule package is under review, still. Just so you can see that; the proposed is 6.036 million pounds.

Then also the proposed quota is under the new ACL that will be coming in Framework Amendment 1. This one is a little tricky because we have a lot of pending changes in the quotas and the ACLs. Then, of course, I have the map in here to show you guys the southern zone and the northern zone; all of the background information.

First I want to go through the purpose and need because we received comments from Headquarters in Silver Spring; and some of them were we needed to revise the purpose and need. Currently the purpose is to modify the current trip limit system for commercial harvest of Atlantic Migratory Group Spanish Mackerel in the proposed southern zone.

We have an IPT recommendation in there. The purpose of this amendment is to ensure the system of trip limits for Atlantic Migratory Group Spanish Mackerel in the proposed southern zone is aligned with the current conditions of the fishery through proposed modifications to the current system of trip limits in place for the species. Sorry it's so long, but that will capture everything we need.

Then the need; we have a new IPT recommendation also to address some comments for this. The need is to respond to new regulations and changing fishery characteristics for Atlantic Migratory Group Spanish Mackerel in the proposed southern zone while increasing social and economic benefits of the CMP fishery through sustainable and profitable harvest of Atlantic

Migratory Group Spanish Mackerel in accordance with provisions set forth in the Magnuson-Stevens Conservation and Management Act.

First I would like for the committee to review that language that the IPT suggested and let us know if you approve that and then have a motion.

DR. DUVAL: Mr. Chairman, I move that we approve the modified language for the purpose and need as suggested by the IPT.

MR. HARTIG: Motion by Michelle; seconded by Jack. Discussion? Is there any objection to this motion? Seeing none; that motion is approved.

DR. MacLAUCHLIN: I have a little more background; just a history of the trip limits just in case anybody needed it. What years there have actually been step-downs triggered; so you can see how often that happens. And again the current trip limits; just to review. We're going right into the action and alternatives.

We also have some recommended language to change for the alternatives. It doesn't change anything about it. It just makes the language consistent throughout the alternatives and tweaks it just a little. Alternative 2 starts the trip limit at 3,500 pounds for the southern zone starting March 1; and then after December 1, when 75 percent of the adjusted southern zone quota has been landed or projected to landed, the trip limit goes to 1,500 pounds.

Alternative 3 has the trip limit at 3,500 pounds; and there is no timeline on this one; so when 75 percent of the southern zone commercial quota has been landed or projected to be landed, the trip limit drops to 500. Then Alternative 4 – and this was the one that was supported by the AP and then also the two commenters – establish the trip limit for 3,500 pounds for the southern zone.

When 75 percent of the adjusted southern zone quota has been landed or projected to be landed, the trip limit will be reduced to 1,500; and then when 100 percent of the adjusted quota is reached, the trip limit is reduced to 500 pounds. We have the IPT suggestions, and basically this is just going to make them all consistent with language in that if it is met or projected to be met and then also just clarify that when you're using that adjusted quota, that when it does hit the full southern zone quota, the commercial sector will be closed for the rest of the year. If you guys can review those and if that language looks good, let me have a motion to approve the language.

MR. HARTIG: Yes, if you agree with the modifications, then we would need a motion to approve the IPT language suggested in Alternatives 2 through 4.

DR. DUVAL: Mr. Chairman, I move that we approve the IPT suggested language in Alternatives 2 through 4.

MR. HARTIG: Second by Mel. Discussion on that motion? Is there any objection to that motion? Seeing none; that motion is approved.

DR. MacLAUCHLIN: So just to remind you that in April 2014, the Mackerel AP reviewed these and recommended Alternative 4; and then we had to comments during the public comment period for Alternative 4. We did send out the amendment and public hearing materials and an invitation to our webinar to the Mid-Atlantic Region and they distributed that to their members and their constituents; so it did go up there.

We did not receive any comments from the Mid-Atlantic about this. Then Table 4 I think makes it a little easier to see the comparison for these. This is the wrong table. I'm sorry; there is an error in this. Table 4, actually you guys took out Alternative 2.

MR. HARTIG: Well, most of the fishermen I have talked, they were in favor of Alternative 4 as well, so if someone would like to make a motion for Alternative 4, if that's what you think it should be, then we could move forward.

DR. DUVAL: Mr. Chairman, I move that we select Alternative 4 as the preferred under this action.

MR. HARTIG: Second by Charlie. Any discussion? Michelle.

DR. DUVAL: Well, I guess just looking at the different alternatives in terms of a projected closure date, they're not drastically different. I think all are probably within the realm of error. I think it looks maybe a two-week timespan or two-week difference between Alternative 3 and Alternative 4. If this is what the fishing public is recommending and the closure dates are not different, I don't see why we wouldn't go with that.

MR. HARTIG: And the fishermen have been adamant about that 500 pounds. Basically if you get to that — we got to it one time in the history of the fishery. What happens in that time is production really ratchets down; but the price increases; so even at 500 pounds, it is still a profitable time for them and they would like to see that included to stretch that season out as long as possible. For a number of these fisheries; both king and Spanish are two of the only species that they participate in, so it is pretty important for them. Is there any other discussion? Monica.

MS. SMIT-BRUNELLO: I just had a question. I was just looking at something and I missed what you just said; but have we had discussion on why it is a good idea to keep the adjusted quota in there if it is no longer I guess biologically necessary?

MR. HARTIG: Yes, and that's what I had just talked about on the record is that why the fishermen – both king and Spanish mackerel are really two of the only species that they participate in; and to be able to get the longest season for Spanish; and then the 500 pounds, as production decreases, the economics of 500 pounds, each fish is worth a lot more money per pound.

Even at 500 pounds, it is still a significant trip for those people, so they want to see it extended as long as possible. I had a number of discussions with these guys saying, well, we could have a 500 pound step-down at some percentage, but they still wanted to go with what we have. I know there was some discussion in the document about being to monitor that closely. I would hope

with the new requirements on monitoring that we have, the weekly reporting, we may be able to get to a situation where we can monitor this to a better level.

MS. SMIT-BRUNELLO: Right, that discussion was in there and how it is difficult to monitor it that closely so that you can effectively implement that with still some quota left to catch.

MR. HARTIG: Yes, and I understand that; but like I said, the regulations have changed so hopefully we will be able to monitor at a finer resolution. Do you have any comments on that, Phil.

MR. STEELE: No, I don't. I hope we can monitor it closely. Remember, most of our landings for mackerel came from port agents and switching over to dealers, but I think it will be fine.

MR. HARTIG: Well, I didn't know that as well; that's a big switch, too, so stay tuned. All right, anymore discussion. Is there any objection to this motion? Seeing none; that motion is approved.

All right, we have a draft motion to approve Coastal Migratory Pelagics Framework Amendment 2 for secretarial review and deem the codified text as necessary and appropriate; give staff editorial license to make any necessary editorial changes to the codified text and to give the council chair authority to approve the revisions and redeem the codified text. Michelle.

DR. DUVAL: So moved, Mr. Chairman.

MR. HARTIG: Second by Charlie. Is there any discussion? Is there any objection? Seeing none; that motion is approved. All right, thank you very much for moving forward with this amendment. That concludes that portion of the mackerel show. That brings us to our discussion paper for Amendment 26. That is behind Attachment 5.

DR. MacLAUCHLIN: Okay, so you have a discussion paper, Attachment 5, in your briefing book. I have just put together this PowerPoint and it kind of just has the main points of that paper. We don't have to look at that paper, but follow long. Here is the proposed purpose and need for Amendment 26. This is the one to separate the king and Spanish mackerel permits into one for each region.

The possible proposed need would be to allow the Gulf and South Atlantic Councils to more effectively manage commercial participation in the respective regions and make changes to participation that will not unnecessarily affect the other region. I have just a little background. There are commercial permits to harvest king and Spanish; and it is valid to harvest those species in the Gulf, South Atlantic and Mid-Atlantic with just the one permit.

King mackerel is limited access and Spanish is open access. The councils considered removing or restricting inactive king mackerel permits or permits below a landings' threshold in Amendment 20A; but selected no action. There is concern about effort for king and Spanish

mackerel on the east coast of Florida. We hear that a lot at the public hearings around Canaveral and Cocoa.

Having separate permits would allow each council to make changes without affecting the other region. King mackerel permits; they are limited access since '98. There are about 1,350 to 1,600 valid permits depending on how many are renewed at the time when you look at the data. Options for separating the permits; one thing that you guys would have to talk about is the number of permits granted per vessel.

If they met whatever criteria you set up, they could get both the Gulf and Atlantic permit. One thing that this would do is create twice the number of permits; but then if you decide that a vessel can only be granted one permit – and this is at the initial granting of the permits – if they can only be initially granted one permit, that is going to limit the fishing grounds maybe for traveling fishermen who have worked in both regions; and then if they qualify for both, how do you determine which region they get; do they get to select one or is it based on some kind of other criteria. Then can they purchase that other permit later?

Also, keep in mind that king mackerel permits have value not just from the dockside revenues that you can get from fishing on a king mackerel permit, but there is also an exchange value for those. Somebody may have invested money into a king mackerel permit or would like to get that money by selling it; and changing the permit system will effectively maybe take away somebody's permit or ability to fish in one of the regions.

Then also as part of a permit portfolio for many fishermen that have a king mackerel permit, they maybe have not even fished on it or fished a very low level, but they keep it in their portfolio instead of selling it to keep that option open. You guys would have to talk about your qualification criteria for getting a permit in a region.

Probably the one that you'll talk about is some kind of landings' threshold; so in Amendment 20A you looked at a period of 2002 through 2011; an average of at least 500 pounds per year; average at least 1,000 pounds or at least one year in that period where they were over 500 pounds or 1,000 pounds.

And then the table in here is from 20A, but it shows you how many permits would meet that qualification, not meet that qualification, and then the percentage of the permits that would either be eliminated or restricted. This was when you were considering this for 20A, either removing those permits that didn't qualify or making them non-transferable; so you can see how this would affect it.

You have a substantial number of active valid fishable permits out there that people keep; but they don't necessarily fish on even at these very low landings' level. A little more with the qualification criteria; there are different zones, trip limits in those zones, seasons in those zones, lots of differences; and so this will affect the participation levels for fishermen in different areas.

We have Table 2 in here that shows you the zones and subzones in the west in the Gulf Group and then the different quotas and trip limits; and then on our size, the northern zone and southern

zone. You could look at qualification criteria other than landings like some kind of home port designation or the number of trips or days fished or something like that.

So just important issues to consider: should you separate the commercial permits; should the current permit holders be allowed to receive both or just one on that initial allocation. If only one permit is granted, how will the determination be made if they qualify for both? Is there some kind of criteria that designates them or they get to pick; and then the qualifying criteria that we just went over, landings, trips, home port. Then does either council wish to establish criteria that would reduce the number of permits?

Okay, moving on to Spanish mackerel permits; these are open access. The range is usually 1,700 to 2,000 valid permits, depending on how many people have renewed in the past couple of years. You could create some kind of limited access program if these were separated; and the South Atlantic was interested in capping or even reducing the number of permits or some kind of passive reduction; so you would put a moratorium on it and then over time the number of permits would reduce, like snapper grouper.

What kind of qualification and criteria if you were going to set up a limited access program; maybe landings. One problem is that this would have to be based on the vessel landings because these are open access permits; so the landings are not actually assigned to that permit like they are with king and snapper grouper. You could consider a moratorium before a permitted limited access. That is how the king mackerel limited access permit works.

So just things to think about; first, should you separate those commercial permits into the different regions. Would either council want to establish limited access system; capping it, setting your qualification criteria, temporary moratorium. And then what would be your criteria of landings or some kind of effort threshold.

There are some control dates that are in place. The councils may want to talk about another control date. We have those here for Gulf king, Gulf Spanish and then one that you set for South Atlantic king and Spanish in 2010. Also, keep in mind that the king mackerel stock assessment is underway; so our SSC will review that in October.

Then the committee will receive those recommendations from the SSC at our December meeting. The Gulf Council will receive their recommendations from their SSC in January 2015. And then also remember that they're considering the mixing zone to be down in the Keys in a different area; so that may affect the boundaries.

There are also alternatives to separating the permits that maybe address some of the concerns, such as area-specific endorsements or separating the FMPs. And then, of course, the Mid-Atlantic Council would need to be consulted for anything that the South Atlantic Council was doing with king and Spanish mackerel permits.

And then we have this in here, the public input. I did review this with the AP in April. They had some concerns and overall passed a motion do not separate the permits. They were looking at a very broad scoping document that didn't have specific actions. It was just kind of some

Mackerel Cmte Charleston, SC September 18, 2014

background information; but in general they had some concerns about the effects on the traveling fishermen.

They work in both regions and that professional fishermen just go where they need to go, and they'll follow the fish; that everyone is entitled to access to the resource. There was some concern about latent permits in the king mackerel fishery and then increased effort in the mixing zone around Cape Canaveral/Cocoa Beach.

We did scope this in January 2014; and that is at the end of that discussion document that you have. There was mixed reaction. It really depended on where you were. Around Cocoa Beach there was support for separating the permits, even maybe reducing the number of permits for king mackerel.

But then also we had opposition to separating the permits because of the fishermen who work in both regions and then an impact on new entrants who instead of buying one permit to work in both regions, they would have to buy two. Then there was some opposition because some commenters felt that the councils should not take away anymore permits.

It was noted in Key West that a higher trip limit for that area could increase the number of active permits or permits that could meet some kind of higher landings' threshold so they should consider increasing trip limits before any action to address latent permits or permits with low levels of landings. Then we have support and opposition for some kind of two-for-one requirement for a king mackerel permit that put in a passive reduction over time; and then some support for an endorsement that would be very specific to king mackerel fishing around Cape Canaveral/Cocoa Beach if the permits are split.

And then support for if you qualified for both permits, then you should be able to get both permits and then using a more recent control date to kind of capture more recent effort. We can talk about this, but I also put together this slide to kind of talk about what is next for CMP, which it all kind of goes together.

I don't know, unless you guys want to talk a little bit about separating the permits or if you want to talk a little more about big picture of what is going to happen the next year and what you guys want to do with the king mackerel stuff, the Spanish allocation and —

MR. HARTIG: I think you have to talk about all the moving parts before you actually get into this, because a number of them are going to play into where you can actually talk about like king mackerel. Spanish is probably a little easier now, but still let's go ahead and talk about the big picture.

DR. MacLAUCHLIN: I have that discussion. The paper was helpful, I thought –

MR. HARTIG: It was.

DR. MacLAUCHLIN: – it was a good piece of work. Okay, we have Amendment 24 that you guys talked about. We kind of went over this options paper; and this is the Atlantic Spanish Mackerel Commercial and Recreational Allocation.

We talked about a couple different ways. One would be a permanent change in the allocation, which is 55 percent commercial and 45 recreational; you know, some kind of permanent change where you talked about setting up some kind of in-season trigger that if some kind of threshold wasn't met; that a portion of – you could do it either way, but mostly we're talking about a portion of the recreational going to commercial somehow during the year if it was triggered; and then setting up a preseason allocation and even changing the framework procedure so you could do that in a framework instead of doing it in a plan amendment.

MS. BECKWITH: Did you guys also – the other idea I had brought up of actually shifting 10 percent from the commercial and 10 percent from the recreational and just having kind of a mutually assessable ACL?

DR. MacLAUCHLIN: I have that in my notes for the next time we talk about that, which is in December, putting that together; and so what you guys asked me for at the last meeting was basically putting together actions and alternatives in December, including stuff that we talked about and the kind of common pool quota that we talked about; and then you review that I guess – you know, remove things that you definitely know you're not interested in.

Then I will bring it back to you in March; and then you wanted the AP to review a little more detailed – they reviewed a scoping document that was very broad; so they didn't have really specific things that they were commenting on; and they wanted a little more detail; and so that's the plan right now. That is going to put it on a kind of slower track than we had anticipated before because you wouldn't – my understanding is that the committee doesn't want to move forward full force until the AP reviews it again and gives you some feedback on exactly what kind of shifts and possible things that you want to look at. I just want to make that is still good.

MR. HARTIG: Yes; certainly we need the AP to review anything specific that we're going to try and talk about at the council meeting; so I would – and they told us, frankly, that the options they had in front of them was too vague to be able to comment on specifically. They would like that more fleshed out in order to get – especially for king mackerel more fleshed out, we've got to wait for the SSC, we've got to see how the numbers change in the zones; so there are a whole lot of working parts for king mackerel in particular that need to be worked out before we can go forward with any kind of talk about what we want to do with the permits. Go ahead unless there are questions.

DR. DUVAL: So the Mackerel AP is meeting in April, right?

DR. MacLAUCHLIN: Yes.

MR. BROWN: I just want to discuss the king mackerel permit thing because I own one. Years ago I used to fish really hard for the king mackerel back in Florida. Then when I moved to South

Carolina, the fishery was a little bit different. We caught them pretty good there for a few years; but then things kind of slowed down, and I was getting more into the for-hire business.

Then in the last few years since I built my headboat; I don't really fish the kings a whole lot, but I still have my permits and I'd like to keep them. I don't want to see those go away. I didn't see anything in there, maybe it is, a provision that was put into place for the renewal of your permits as far as your income requirement. That was one thing I could always pivot off of if I was going to renew my permit.

I was in the fishing industry regardless of whether I was fishing for king mackerel or whatever; and my income requirement was a hundred percent fisherman; so it didn't matter whether or not what I was doing. Whether I was catching snapper grouper or for-hire or whatever, I was in the fishing industry.

I think that's something I feel like if you're going to implement something to pivot off of as far as looking at either the two-for-one or something as maybe increasing the income requirement for the renewal of a permit. I'm just trying to think of a way to where I could keep my permits, too. That's one of the things I don't want to lose.

I'd utilize my permit more in this area if we had the influx of kings that I could remember, but we just don't - I haven't seen any here in a long time, enough to justify putting the paravanes back on the boat and trying to just catch enough to pay for the expense going. Anyway, I just wanted to put that out there.

DR. MacLAUCHLIN: In Amendment 20A, the income requirement was removed; so there is no affidavit to apply anymore to get that. We had in that action another alternative which actually increased the income requirement, but in the end the council selected to just remove them completely. You have considered it so it would be – you know, that would take new action and basically reestablishing it in some way.

MR. BROWN: And what was the rationale behind that, Ben; I don't understand?

MR. HARTIG: Well, basically we were looking for professional fishermen to be in the industry. In our area in particular we have a lot of people that get in and out of the fishery when it goes up and down. They're not commercial fishermen in any other fishery; so they only jump in and out of king mackerel.

In our area we'd like to see it more towards the professional fishermen, the fishermen who fish and have a portfolio of the fisheries that they fish in; and then they could have some kind of income requirement based on their portfolio to put forward to that. It wouldn't necessarily have to be for king or Spanish mackerel. It could be for anything that you fish for; and it could be for for-hire income as well.

MR. BROWN: I hear what you said, but I still don't understand what was the rationale for removing the income requirement; that is what I meant?

DR. DUVAL: Yes; we had a lot of discussions about this, Mark; and if I recall correctly, I'm pretty sure the advisory panel voted to remove it. We got quite a few comments to remove the income requirement. Personally, I liked the option of increasing the amount of income that you needed, but part of it is that that's not verified.

If you say that you have 25 percent of your income is from commercial fishing, there is no way to verify that. I guess it is an affidavit that you sign or used to sign; but there is no way for the agency to force you to give up your tax returns or anything like that to demonstrate that you've actually done that. Really, it is just your word against nothing.

There is no ability to prove that. I think a lot of people were cheating on getting around that income requirement. They'd put permit in like their wife's name or something like that and so that 25 percent of the requirement was being met; so there were I think lots of problems with it. I'm sure Roy and Monica can elaborate.

MR. HARTIG: Let me get Roy to go ahead with that.

DR. CRABTREE: Well, I think what we found, Mark, is when we looked back over many, many years, no one ever got turned down anymore because of the income requirement. It had just become a bureaucratic exercise; but it really didn't seem to be doing anything. Michelle is right, in order to determine if you meet the requirement, we asked you to check a box saying I meet the requirements and signing saying you do, but there is no way to verify whether you actually do meet it or not. It is essentially self-certification, I guess.

MR. HARTIG: Well, let me get Monica to fully explain it; and then I'll get back to you, Mark.

MS. SMIT-BRUNELLO: And I agree with that; and even before we had the affidavit, we did have individuals submit their income tax returns; but they submitted whatever – how should I put this. We had no idea whether we were getting the actual tax returns that had been submitted to the IRS because there was no way to verify that with the IRS. Through all those years when people submitted their income tax return, Roy is right, whatever return they submitted resulted in them meeting the income requirement; so that no one ever didn't get their permit because they didn't meet the income requirement.

Everyone always met the income requirement; it was determined to kind of be a bureaucratic exercise, if you will. The Gulf Council had made a move to get rid of the income requirements in their reef fish permits; and they wanted to get rid of the income requirements as well in the king mackerel for all these reasons.

DR. CRABTREE: And part of what spurred the Gulf Council to look at this was in the aftermath of the oil spill a number of fishermen were hired by BP to go out on their boats and skim and clean up; and they were paid by BP to do that. Only that income was not income from fishing; and they were worried that having that income would cause them not to meet the income qualification anymore; so it got real complicated in the aftermath of the storm.

MR. BROWN: Boy, Roy, that's cooking the books; isn't it? I had my permit turned down a couple of times because they said, well, you didn't send in everything for your tax return. At one time you had to send everything in; so I would send it down. Boy, I got so mad at you people in St. Pete a couple of times, I was fuming.

DR. CRABTREE: I apologize for that.

MR. BROWN: But to your point about the Gulf, that's just being falsified there. If they're not separating out the fishing from what they're doing separate from that, they –

DR. CRABTREE: Well, they couldn't; they weren't allowed to fish because the Gulf was closed; also, they were being paid by BP.

MR. BROWN: Well, that's separate.

DR. CRABTREE: Well, it is separate, but that along with a whole host of other things caused – it also had to do with a variety of things; but I think that's where looking at the income requirement probably started from. After going through it all, I think both councils came to the conclusion that we're not really getting anything out of the income requirement and we dropped. Now, you can disagree with that, but that is the decision that was reached.

MR. BROWN: Like I said, I know when I filed it and on my tax return it said "commercial fisherman"; it was stating on my tax return what I did for a living. It actually said "commercial/for-hire", but it was fishing all the way across.

MR. HARTIG: I think there were a number of us that were disappointed, but we all came to the realization that it was a bureaucratic exercise, basically. Mel.

MR. BELL: I was just going to say as we move forward with this, whatever comes out of it, the thing that I'm looking at is from our fisheries standpoint we're not a big king mackerel state. Our landings might be a really, really good year recently, like 20,000 pounds for the whole thing; so our guys that have the permits, it is part of that portfolio.

It's basically a lot of the snapper grouper guys that just simply augment their catch because they have both permits with some change. And in recent years, as Mark has said, they're just not around like they used to be. You might be doing six of seven thousand pounds for the whole state. It is important to these guys as part of their portfolio, I guess. My interest would be making sure they can at some point operate at some level; but they're not directed – there is really no directed king mackerel fishery for us, anyway. We may be a little unique, but that is the way it is set up.

MR. BROWN: Ben, the reason I voiced my opinion about this is I just don't want this to slip into a direction to where it starts eliminating permits from people that are in the industry.

MR. HARTIG: And I understand that; and I think the realization that I've had through this whole process is that really the problem lies in the general area where I am. In a high population

center is where you have lots and lots of people and you have a large number of permits and people jump in and jump out of the fishery. It doesn't seem to be a big problem with king mackerel number of permits in North Carolina. It doesn't seem to be a problem.

It doesn't seem to be a big problem with the number of permits in the Gulf – of people that fish in the Gulf. Now, we have people that go and forth. Since we have now a regional type of separation – although the Carolinas would be involved in that regional thing, I think we could even get into a smaller region where the problem is really occurring and probably get an options paper based on what that region needs to be able to able to keep viable in the industry and not have people jump in and out.

We'd just like to see it become more of a professional type fishery. We'd like to see our fishermen be able to participate in the fishery without having people jump in and increase the amount of harvest and lower the price. I mean, there is a whole host of things that happened. We have got our fishery that occurs in the spawning season and we'd like to continue that; but we don't think that everybody in the world should be able to jump in during the spawning season where we are and participate.

We think you can take some fish out of that spawning season without having a big impact, and we have through the years and the stock has rebuilt based on that. We're concerned about the number of people who jump in during the May timeframe to fish that fishery. I have come to the realization that it is not a South Atlantic, per se, problem. The problem is in a geographic region on the Florida East Coast. Go ahead, Mark.

MR. BROWN: And to that, I agree with you; and I don't think we have those issues north of Florida; so if you were going to make any changes in that respect, I think that this is more of a Florida or a Gulf issue.

MR. HARTIG: Yes, and like I say, I don't even think it's really a Gulf issue. Once we see the levels of harvest that come out of both SSCs for the Gulf and the Atlantic for king mackerel, then we're going to have to sit down and figure out how we're going to manage king mackerel in the future. We don't know what those levels are yet.

We don't know how many fish we're going to be able to catch and the future impact. It would be really premature to go ahead with some kind of a permit action. Kari has been willing to come down and talk to the fishermen in the area where we have the problem; and we haven't done that because we wanted to wait until we get the catch levels. We've got a whole, big presentation to give the fishermen. We'll have a big meeting and lots and lots of input.

DR. MacLAUCHLIN: Sticky wall.

MR. HARTIG: Well, we could actually do that; we could actually do the sticky wall thing as well. That would be great; but we have to give that presentation to the fishermen about what comes out of the SSC. I think at that appropriate time, Kari could come down to that meeting and then we could do the sticky wall and see if we could find a way to move forward with some of this; but that's for king.

Spanish is a little bit different because we have the catch level recommendations coming out of the stock assessment. We have a new regional aspect that isn't implemented yet, but that is the way we're looking forward. The problem with Spanish is not in North Carolina. It is in the area where we fish for Spanish again in South Florida where we have a lot of people jumping in and out of the fishery.

I don't know how to address that without having at least a permit requirement; and I know North Carolina doesn't want that. We've caught the quota for Spanish in the majority of the recent years; and we've gone over the allocation in most years in the last three, I think.

We should be looking at Spanish as some kind of limited access fishery. Whether North Carolina wants to do it that way or not, I think generally we need to look at Spanish and bring it in under a limited access system for the future because we're overshooting the allowable harvest. Michelle.

DR. DUVAL: To that point, again, 95 percent of our Spanish mackerel landings are caught within state waters. We're opposed to forcing our fishermen who are working only in state waters, only like in Pamlico Sound, to get a federal permit and especially limited access. We will have to dig that one out when we get to it.

MR. HARTIG: Okay, there is where one of the problems lies. Roy.

DR. CRABTREE: Well, I've been chastised in no uncertain terms at many a Gulf Council meeting over the issue of too many permits. You've got a whole group of mackerel fishermen who travel after these fish; and it is all they do is mackerel fish. They're in the Gulf; and I think most of them live in Ben's area on the east coast of Florida.

It seems partly what we have here is we've got a group of full-time mackerel guys who follow the fish; and that's what they do for a living; and they'll tell me that's what they've done their whole lives for 30-plus years; and that we're putting them out of business. So you've got this conflict of these mobile guys who follow the fish and the guys who just fish where they live and don't follow the fish; and we've never been able to reconcile that.

The guys who don't follow the fish don't want to see the permit numbers reduced and the professional guys do. I don't know how you reconcile that; but we've had some very intense discussions with some of those guys; and you've been there at a lot of those.

DR. DUVAL: I'm going to jump a little bit to only the full-time mackerel fishermen being called professional fishermen, because we have full-time professional fishermen who fish for mackerel when the fish are available at those more extreme reaches of the range of the stock. With all the environmental changes that we've seen in recent years, the availability has waxed and waned for those guys to be able to participate.

Especially in that northern part of North Carolina, it is the extreme range for most southern species and the extreme range for a lot of northern species; so there are a lot of shifts that do

occur; and a hundred percent of their income is from commercial fishing. This kind of gets back to what I said in the HMS Committee when we consider things like that, I know it is a tough lift, but we really need to consider them holistically with regard to those social and economic impacts of removing a tool that someone has to make a living. Maybe it is just your November and December paycheck, but you're going to miss those if they're gone.

MR. HARTIG: When Roy mentioned that full-time mackerel fisherman, that is what complicates the issue. The full-time guys on the east coast, since the stock has been down, more and more of them have migrated into the Gulf in the summer; so the Gulf guys who would use king mackerel as a fill-in for other fisheries that they weren't prosecuting at the time – and there are some full-time mackerel fishermen in the Gulf; not as many as on the South Atlantic.

I mean they're being disadvantaged by the influx of fishermen into the Gulf; and that's what the Gulf has been concerned about. I think you could address that as we tried to earlier in an endorsement situation where each different area – each area we have that has a quota could have their endorsement; and if you had landings, you could get in; if you didn't, you didn't.

At least you could stop that push towards the Gulf, which to me is only going to increase because our stock isn't looking as good coming out of the assessment; and the Gulf stock is still looking pretty healthy. That dynamic is still going to occur; and if the Gulf ever wants to slow it down or stop it, they're going to have to do some kind of endorsement system or something to allow some kind of landings' history to be under an endorsement to fish in that area. Anna.

MS. BECKWITH: Well, I was going to say exactly what Michelle said; but also a point to consider is as much we all want to divorce the Gulf Council, we were able to protect some of our mackerel fishermen recently with that joint amendment where there were concerns about shifting of the dates and the starting dates and how that was affecting the prices. We would certainly lose that ability if we went to a completely separate permit system; so we have been able to offer a little buffer to protect the prices on our side.

DR. CRABTREE: Just for the record, I don't want to divorce the Gulf Council; I love the Gulf Council. I just wanted to get that into the record.

MR. HARTIG: We appreciate that and I'm sure Kevin does as well. Mark.

MR. BROWN: Again, I say this issue is more down in Florida and maybe Southwest Florida, whatever, but, Roy, I hear what you're saying, but I used to know a lot of those guys that did that traveling. We were talking about it the other day at lunch, as a matter of fact, and I asked him, I said have you seen this guy or this guy; and a lot people we lost contact with. I don't know if they just went over in the Gulf and died over there or if they're somewhere in the woods or what; but I haven't seen a lot of people that used to be consistent with traveling. We would see them on the east coast and then they would move around the end of Florida and up into the Gulf. I don't even know what the fishery looks like anymore. As far as the people that are traveling, I don't know any of the people.

DR. CRABTREE: Well, I imagine there are fewer of them than there used to be. There is fewer of everything it seems like fishing-wise than there used to be; but there still are a group of them; and I don't know, Ben, 20 or 25 of those guys will show up periodically. We have real conflicts. We've had big issues in Louisiana because there is a lot of local resistance to having people from other areas come in and fish the quotas. It's still there and we've had them show up at both Gulf and South Atlantic Council meetings in the last year or so; so there is still an issue there.

MR. BOWEN: I was just going to mention to Mark I don't think he was at the Savannah meeting in March when we had a heck of a turnout of those traveling king mackerel fishermen to comment. There were quite a few so they are around.

MR. HARTIG: Well, I will tell you, Mark, that the older guys that you knew aren't traveling anymore, but there is a new generation that does; and a number of younger fishermen in this fishery that travel.

MR. BROWN: Well, I can tell you if you're going to go down to Florida and start explaining this down around Fort Pierce or something, you need to take Gregg Waugh with you because I saw him talk to them in 1982.

Gregg stood up in front of everybody and was telling them about all these new permits and boundaries they were going to have to apply to and I figured, oh, man, he is going to get scalped, but he did actually a good job.

MR. HARTIG: I appreciate that. Things have changed a little bit since the days of the mackerel wars. I remember them vividly. Go ahead, Michelle.

DR. DUVAL: Mark, just one more point; we struggled with this when we were looking at the whole permit question in Amendment 20A. One of the things that we tried to do was look at instead of things like average landings or something like that as a means of separating or eliminating permits was we tried to look at adding an alternative that would allow for consideration of all your landings across all fisheries.

That was during a Joint Mackerel Committee Meeting that we had with the Gulf Council's Mackerel Committee; and our struggle was exactly that fishermen do participate in different fisheries and you have your northeast permits, your HMS permits, your South Atlantic permits. Also, there was a real push from the Gulf to also be able to use state waters' landings from your state waters' fisheries; because there are folks who do participate in federal and state-managed fisheries.

There was concern I think from the agency with being able to have access to all of those landings for a permit holder. I still think the idea has merit, but it is complicated and would certainly separate your truly professional fishermen from guys who may have a permit and they're fishing on the weekend and selling to supplement their fuel bill.

MR. PHILLIPS: If I remember, I think we've had this discussion before; and I think we're going to have it again. We're going to have it when we get that new assessment out of the Gulf.

We're going to take it all back to the AP; and then we'll have a little new boundaries and some more understanding on how we run the rabbit.

I agree with Roy; occasionally we may want a divorce, but our marriage counseling seems to be working for the most part. This is really good conversation, but we're definitely going to see this again, and we're really not going to be able to make any decision until we get the new assessment.

MR. HARTIG: And with that comment, I think we should probably move on. Basically we're in limbo at the moment and we should wait until we see what comes of the SSC as far as catch level recommendations and projections; and then we'll have a whole host of things to talk about there for king mackerel.

For Spanish, I don't know what we can do. I'm going to have to put my thinking cap on for that. I don't know how in the world that you can deal with the problems we have without a permit in our area, but maybe we'll come up with some way that we can; maybe just landings since it is in that area, maybe some landings' discussion. Clearly, North Carolina doesn't want to enter into the permit discussion; and that has been consistent through time; so that is not different, and I appreciate that. Really, Kari, do you have clear direction from this mud that we've given you?

DR. MacLAUCHLIN: Sure! Well, with the rest of this, this is also based on conversations with Ryan on the Gulf Council staff. In October he was going to talk to them about also what is next for mackerel, which is what this came from; and that's when we thought maybe 24 could just be Spanish allocations stuff.

They were talking about looking at the allocations for Gulf king mackerel, but I think they're also waiting for the stock assessment results. We could move forward with 24; and 26 could be just a king mackerel – you know, revising the boundary, if that happens; the Gulf looking at their allocations for king.

We can do the ACLs, if the ACLs are going to be changed based on the stock assessment results, in a framework amendment to get them through; but we can also put them in this one and then changing any other AMs or management measures or something that maybe could all go in like a king mackerel amendment.

Then down the road, after everything we're waiting on right now, the northern and southern zone quotas, the ACLs for Spanish, the ACLs for king; and once all that gets in place, then an amendment to talk about separating the permits or some kind of other bigger – looking at the problems that you guys identified with the king and Spanish and coming up with ways to address them.

MR. HARTIG: I think you have laid a rational way to move forward. Not at this time, Doug, don't worry about it; this year there won't be any more king mackerel amendments, but, yes, in the future there will be, so that sign is probably not appropriate. I think if you all understand Kari's way to move forward, I think that's probably a really good way to do that. I see heads

nodding at the table; I don't think we need a motion to do that. I think direction to staff that we have given and this discussion has helped a lot.

DR. MacLAUCHLIN: I just want to make sure that everybody is aware of our plan.

MR. HARTIG: All right, that takes care of the mackerel section of this. We have some cobia presentations, I believe. Mel has asked us to have a presentation on cobia. There is still some concern, I guess, in South Carolina over some of their – actually, they have some stock-specific fish the genetic analysis has shown over the years. Go ahead, Mel.

MR. BELL: I'll just tee this up. Chris McDonough from our staff is going to make the presentation; but maybe just for informational purposes, we don't really anticipate any action necessarily coming out of this, but we would like to have some discussion because there are some interesting aspects to this.

For a number of years our fishermen particularly down in the Beaufort County area south of us have had some concerns about what they're seeing with the cobia fishery and concerns about the – Chris will get into this, but it is interesting. We've done a lot of genetics' work on our cobia and have been able to distinguish there is a distinct population segment that kind of works in the Port Royal/St. Helena Broad River Area.

We have documented those as an actual spawning aggregation inside – well, that is inside state waters. Then you also have cobia that are just offshore and predominantly on the artificial reefs; and Chris will get into that. What we are seeing and the fishermen are seeing – and we've heard this backed up by our law enforcement officers as well – is perhaps a lot more pressure on these offshore fish and kind of a diminishing status of the inshore fish.

They have some concerns about what we may be doing in terms of the pressure on these fish that is aggregating at the same time of the year perhaps for spawning aggregation or pre-spawning or something. As Ben mentioned yesterday, these are batch spawners. They may spawn there, they move up the coast and that sort of thing.

There are some interesting movement patters with these fish. I'll just let Chris give the presentation, but it is something we wanted to bring to the council's attention; and it may warrant future action on our part from the standpoint of the council; and there may be some other things that the state can do as well. So, Chris, go ahead.

MR. McDONOUGH: Okay, I'll go ahead and get started. I do want to point out or Kari asked to point out that the presentation was sent around; so you should be able to pull it up however you get it. Okay, the issues, as Mel has kind of brought some of these up, was that with cobia you've got these offshore aggregations on artificial reefs.

In addition to that, at the same time you've got these spawning aggregations inshore particularly in Broad River Sound and St. Helena Sound that are essentially occurring at the same time; and that is when all the fishing pressure is occurring at both inshore and offshore sites. We're getting some indications that fishing pressure from fishermen and from law enforcement as well as some

of the recreational data and our charterboat data; that fishing pressure is increasing in the offshore area.

At the same time there has been evidence, circumstantial in some case, but there is evidence of decline in relative landings in the inshore areas as well. Also, those fish do move back and forth between the inshore and the offshore areas. This is supported in tagging data. Particularly for the distinct population segment in the Broad River Sound, those fish have a high degree of site fidelity, so they return to areas year after year.

An additional one is that there is some concern about illegal sale of cobia from federal waters; and then last, which we've kind of already stated a couple of times here, but that increasing fishing pressure offshore possibly could lead to similar declines in the offshore population. Okay, for essentially a little overview of our fishery statistics; now this is coming from both our charterboat data, logbook data, as well as the MRIP Survey.

There are, of course, some limitations; not fishery-independent data, so it is not quite as vetted as well. I'm sure most of you are aware. An issue with the MRIP Survey, particularly for cobia; cobia is a highly seasonal fishery in South Carolina. There is a very narrow window; and the MRIP Survey, by its characteristics and the way it is carried out, the narrower the window is, slightly less reliable the data is; so that is something to just keep in mind.

South Carolina does have a commercial fishery. The majority of our landings are from recreational. However, our landings typically make up about 2 percent of the coastal landings in the southeast; typically ranging two to four thousand pounds a year. They are caught year-round; however, as I mentioned that narrow window, it is mainly May to July.

The game fish status that was given to cobia as of 2012 makes it such that the only cobia that can be landed commercially in South Carolina have to come from federal waters and not from state waters. That's about all I'm going to say on the commercial side. Okay, for the recreational data, the recent peak that occurred in the stock was in 2007.

The relative proportion of the fish that are being released alive has remained relatively constant. Even after the peak, you're getting those B-2's, the released-alive fish make up a slightly greater portion of the fishery. Most of those fish are coming from – according to the MRIP Survey, most of those fish are coming from federal waters or typically a higher percentage.

And then one note; in 2011 we had a much more reduced harvest. From what we've been able to find, digging through all the MRIP data, is that it is a problem with the intercept and likely the intercepts were very low that year; and so the catch levels were correspondingly low when they did the expansions.

By capture mode; most of the fish are caught by private boats. You get about a similar percentage between for-hire boats, which is a split between charterboats and partyboats, and shore-based anglers. These are individual fishermen or small groups in private boats landing most of the fish.

As far as where they're coming from by time period, the top graph there you've got – that's from the MRIP Survey by wave. The majority of them are coming in from federal waters or a pretty even split during the third and fourth waves, basically May through August. Then we see a similar shift in the charterboat log data, on the bottom one there where you've got the peaks occurring inshore in May/June and then shifting offshore in June/July into early August for the charterboat data.

Okay, for the effort levels, there is a higher proportion of effort that occurs in inshore waters, mostly due to access. It is a lot easier for more fishermen to get access to that inshore population or group, I should say, in state waters. Typically the catches in terms of number of fish coming in are higher in federal waters.

The nominal catch/effort CPUE is typical higher in federal waters than it is in state waters even with the increased amount of catches – I'm sorry, trips – and that is mostly driven by that narrow timeframe from May through July. The charterboat log data you see a little bit different trend; it is a little clearer.

You still see the much higher effort level in number of trips, which is the top left one there, in state waters. However, that is kind of flip-flopping in recent years, but you see that steady increase in number of trips in federal waters; and then the total number of fish, which is the one down on the bottom left, is showing a steady increase; but the scale, of course, because the scale is much higher in the state waters kind of shrinks that down a bit.

However, the nominal catch per unit effort between has been relatively stable. I mean, there is a slight declining trend in both zones; but it has remained relatively stable since the early 2000's. When we add bag limit and what people are actually bringing in, the MRIP Survey, the two on the left there, show that the majority of those private boat trips are really reporting just one cobia per trip or one fish per person per trip.

Those peak waves, 2, 3, 4, are the only ones where you're really getting that people are bringing more essentially filling the bag limit and bringing in two fish. Then the charterboats show a similar trend. Of course, you can have more fishermen, so they're going to be bringing in more fish per trip. However, it is like 67 percent of them are pretty much bringing one fish per person.

This is important to point out that when you starting about, okay, if you're going to think of alternatives, if you're trying to impact that fishing level, changing the bag limit here is unlikely to make much of a difference if most of the fishermen are already only bringing in one fish. Many of you have probably seen some of this stuff before, just some summary from what we know of the genetics.

There is a distinct South Atlantic and Gulf stocks with cobia; and within the South Atlantic there are distinct population segments. These occur in the Chesapeake Bay and South Carolina. They were identified via the spawning aggregations that occur in these areas. There no morphometric differences in these fish. You show one next to one; you're not going to be able to tell the difference.

There is limited gene flow between the populations; and generally tag data supports this. As I mentioned before, most of them exhibit quite a bit of natal homing in terms of that site fidelity. The best way to illustrate this is what we've done in South Carolina. Okay, fish that have been tagged in and around the Broad River Sound Area and St. Helena Sound, as well as offshore, almost 90 percent of the recaptures that have occurred with those fish have occurred within the inshore areas.

Most of those that have moved out and have been recaptured out of state are occurring to the south. That one dot that is up off of North Carolina, that was actually a fish that was tagged on the Betsy Ross Reef offshore and was not actually tagged inshore, moved north; but the majority of them typically move south.

You've got some of that north/south migration as well as east/west migration. Some of those fish that have been tagged in the inshore areas occur in those offshore areas. Then a little bit more from the stock assessment here – and actually I would like to point out – I didn't realize this when I – I'm not going to throw Mike under the bus too much, but when I borrowed the slide, these graphs are switched.

The bottom graph is actually the spawning stock biomass figure and the top one is the fishing mortality figure. Anyway, this was based on a statistical catch-at-age model that they used in the assessment, using landings and life history data. The spawning stock biomass did approach overfishing a couple of years, in 2007 and 2009; but the main thing is on the regional fishing pressure appeared to be increasing.

Given the possibly increased effort in recent years, we may have passed one of those lines; and that's hard to tell. You can't trigger these assessments every other year; it just takes too much time and effort to do them; so it is hard to keep track; but it is something to keep in mind. Of course, there are limitations to the assessment.

It is not sensitive to those localized populations. It is really done more on a regional level. However, even though overfishing is not occurring – it was concluded that overfishing was not occurring in the South Atlantic and the stock was not overfished; those distinct population segments, because they are in areas that are known by anglers, they're concentrated, they can be more easily targeted; so the level of effort may have greater impact on those fish because of that ease of access.

To conclude and basically repeating a lot of stuff I've already said, but there is some anecdotal evidence from law enforcement as well as some of the fishermen observing that it seems that fishing pressure is increasing offshore. The charterboat data actually supports some of this. It does show that fishing pressure – at least the relative number of trips and number of fish being caught has been increasing offshore; however, the relative CPUEs have stayed fairly consistent.

The MRIP data also shows some of this increase in effort, but not quite the same amount of decrease as it does in state waters. Because, as I mentioned, the limited window with the MRIP Survey in terms of this fishery in South Carolina, the error factors are quite a bit higher; and so that could indicate some reliability issues that need to be dealt with in the MRIP data.

Catch-per-unit-effort levels from both MRIP and charterboat data seem to be relatively stable over the last five to seven years or so or a little further back in the charterboat data. As I mentioned on that last slide, even though overfishing was determined not to really be occurring, those concentrated aggregations, both inshore and offshore, are more easily targeted; so increased effort could have an effect that is essentially harder to detect or it would be more difficult to detect. It's one of those things we run into where if the problem occurs, we don't know until after. That's it; any questions?

MR. HARTIG: Chris, thank you very much. Wilson.

DR. LANEY: Chris, have you all seen any changes in the age structure of the stock? Again, I'll say right up front, I don't know what a normal age structure for a healthy cobia stock would look like. I know it is another one of those very fast-growing species; so I suspect maybe they don't live a long time, anyway, but that is a perception on my part. If you are seeing a lot of increased pressure; is the age structure truncating as well?

MR. McDONOUGH: Actually, the short answer to that question is I don't know. Most of the age data that has been done – and I didn't really review that for what they've got in the last couple of years for this presentation – is what has been done through the stock assessment since it was only two years ago. They still continue to collect age data, but I haven't seen anything recent. Actually, some of the information I have shown; they're getting ready to release or submitted a paper that is going to have some of that data and that should be coming out soon.

MR. BOWEN: I fish out of Savannah so I'm on the southern end of what you're showing here. One thing to keep in mind I think the for-hire effort – and I'm recalling from memory – despite what we had there in the last couple of years, what happened for us was sea bass didn't open until June 1, until that fishing year got changed.

Well, the charterboats are sitting at the dock and our sheephead are gone by the middle of March; so we were still trying to put trips together; but we couldn't keep sea bass so we started cobia fishing. Then those people that went cobia fishing while the sea bass were closed, huh, we like this; we want to come back and do it again next year.

From my perspective, that's the reason you see in the for-hire sector an incline in the effort. I wanted to point that out. Overfishing is not going on, so they say, and it is not being overfished; and then I also heard you say a reduction from two to one really might not make a big difference. To be frank, what are you trying to get out of this; what are you wanting the council to do or what would help I guess is the best way of asking?

MR. McDONOUGH: I'll defer that question to Mel.

MR. BELL: Zack, it is not that we want to do anything right now. We've been working with our fishermen down there for a while; and they've been expressing concerns to us. I encouraged them to come. Bill Parker who was here last night, one of our charterboat captains, has been at this for quite a while; and we will hear some more tonight as well.

It is an informational thing just to let the council know this is going on and there are concerns. I get what you're saying in terms of that spike. Our fishery might be a little bit different and the spike might be for a slightly reason, perhaps. Our fishery has traditionally been very focused on those inshore fish, on that inside DPS.

What the guys are seeing – and what we wanted to make sure is we're sharing with you what data we have; and we can support what we can support and what we can't, we can't. What everybody is telling us – and this makes sense across the board – is the fish just are not there inside like they used to be; so there is additional interest in shifting offshore. We have documented an increase in offshore fishing.

I think the concern is that perhaps – and they can tell you themselves in their own words tonight – perhaps we have really, really, really worked this inshore population real heavily; and now we're seeing the results of that. There is some concern over now working the offshore aggregations real heavily.

I'm not putting words in their mouth; they have said this to me; it is sort of like, well, we need to do something; but stop us because we can't stop ourselves. And I'm not asking for any action; it is just for discussion purposes. Another reason this made sense kind of right now is the council has already begun talking about spawning aggregations in another plan and in other areas and talking about SMZs and using SMZs to help pressure, perhaps, off of spawning aggregations.

If indeed what we have – we know we have aggregations of these cobia on our artificial reefs at the same time that the fish are actually spawning just a few miles away. We're not prepared to support with data that those fish are actually spawning on those reefs; but they're sure ready. We have documented that they are spawning inside.

I think the concern is what we have here is increasing pressure on perceived spawning aggregations or certainly aggregations of fish that are at the time of the year for spawning. The fishermen have brought this to us as what can we do? Since some of what we can do is obviously a state solution because the state can do certain things for state waters.

But these fish, as we've mentioned from tagging, kind of move back and forth and they don't recognize the three-mile line, per se. So, at some point in time we may be interested in coming o the council for what could we do to perhaps provide some degree of protection and reduction of mortality on these aggregations out here.

One logical thing – since they are artificial reefs, they are already designated as special management zones for snapper grouper purposes; and since through CE-BA 2 we have kind of used SMZs to help provide some protection for other species. I mean, the logical question might be could we bring some sort of level of SMZ protection on these very specific sites at a specific time of the year.

That is where we get into the – you know, if you decided to do that, if we decided that was a good thing, bag limits, boat limits, a seasonal time-based – because the timing on these guys is

amazing. It's like 15 April to 15 June, boom; I mean it is like clockwork every year. It is just for discussion purposes. We're not asking for anything, but we wanted to bring this to the council's attention. It kind of fits the topic of what we've spent some time talking about earlier related to snapper grouper, which is protection of spawning aggregations of fish.

MR. BOWEN: What is the state regulations for the South Carolina for the cobias; is it still the same as the federal regulations or have you took proactive measures and reduced it?

MR. BELL: It is the same; it is a 2/2 bag limit. The only different that we have done in state waters is cobia have been established as a game fish, which prevents the commercial sale of fish caught in state waters only. It does not restrict the sale of fish in federal waters. That is a little unique feature of kind of what goes on down there as well. There is a lot of commercial sale that we don't document through landings. Our law enforcement guys are very good about working this.

This year alone they wrote four successful tickets, kind of doing a reverse sale operation thing of kind of a reverse kind of thing. There is a lot of direct sale going on to restaurants; and we know that. It was a lot easier for folks. When that inshore population was doing much better, they could do that a lot quicker.

Now that they're having to go offshore, it is a little more complicated, but they still operate under the two fish bag limit. But from a state perspective, that's the only thing we've done so far; but certainly the state, to protect that DPS inside, could look at options like a boat limit or one fish or some sort of time-based restriction. That's all on the table, obviously, for the state.

MR. BOWEN: And one more point and then I'm going to drop it and we can move on; but let's keep in mind that our artificial reefs were not only set aside for habitat-building for our fish, but they were also set aside and placed for our recreational anglers to have a place to fish. Because not only South Carolina but Georgia's sandy bottom; you have to go so far to get a natural bottom that they were placed there for the recreational anglers to be productive in catching fish. I know there are multiple reasons, but that is one reason that they were placed there.

MR. BELL: And that's why the SMZs were put in place. The SMZs – and trust me, I was there on Day One – the SMZs were all about maintaining the reef for the purpose of which it was designed, which is to benefit as many recreational anglers as possible. That's why we asked early on to put certain gear restrictions in place; and it was never about commercial versus recreational.

It was about efficiency of operation and how do you get the maximum benefit out of that reef for as many people as possible. What I would say is that if you were to look at something related to cobia, if you wanted to maximize the benefit for all recreational fishermen for cobia alone on an SMZ, placing some sort of restriction just helps you — more people can catch more fish.

In other words, if you kind of, let's say, decrease the efficiency of the allowance for individuals, it allows more people access to those fish over time; so you really increase the advantage over time for recreational fishermen. I'm a hundred percent on board with you. That's exactly why

the reefs are there; and that's exactly why if we were to go down this road – and, of course, the state would have to – our fishermen would have to say, yes, we're cool with that. We want to do something like that. We're not saying that's going to happen; but, no, you're absolutely right.

MS. BECKWITH: Can we have John or Mike come up and remind me of the strengths, weaknesses and uncertainties relative to the cobia assessment since it has been a few years?

DR. ERRIGO: I was actually just looking at the assessment in case any questions came up and also to double-check the figures to make sure they were reversed. Okay, for cobia, what happened when they split the stock at the Georgia/Florida Line, it didn't leave as much data for the rest of the South Atlantic stock; so we wound up using – for indices of abundance, we used the headboat index and I think we also used the South Carolina logbooks for an index of abundance for cobia.

There was no independent survey for cobia in the South Atlantic; so it was just those two surveys. There was some concern that like for the charterboat index; that if they were hitting the – or even for the headboat index, if they were hitting the bag limit; but after we looked at the numbers, it seemed that most trips were not hitting the bag limits so we were okay with that. I know that the charterboat index was truncated at a certain time period; because one of the graphs actually in the presentation you saw was the trips targeting cobia ramped up at a certain time period; so they truncated the index there because targeting changed at that time period.

We also had minimal data north of – we had landings' data north of North Carolina, but not much else. Unfortunately, though, a lot of landings came from like Virginia. I don't recall if that was included in the assessment; but we had very little other data from states north of North Carolina. The index itself was from South Carolina. We worked with what we had; like age composition, sample sizes were on the low side; so there were a lot of uncertainties in the assessment. I don't know if you have any specific questions.

MR. HARTIG: Do you have anything else, Anna?

MS. BECKWITH: Any strengths?

DR. ERRIGO: There was enough data to run a catch-at-age analysis, I suppose. It was certainly one of the more data-poor species that we've run an assessment on. There were a lot of uncertainties, which is why the graphs you saw at the end had really large gray areas around the line; because there was a lot of uncertainty in the assessment.

MR. HARTIG: The only strengths were is we could trace cohorts. That was the only strength; and that was probably the only real reason we got any information at all out of the assessment is we could track some cohorts through the fishery. Mel.

MR. BELL: I was just going to say Captain Parker mentioned last night is – so in the assessment, which was 2012, not overfished and not overfishing not occurring, but kind of close to the line; trending towards the line, perhaps. I doubt that we'll see another cobia assessment for a while.

In that interim I think there is just some concern with increased targeting or increased interest on this offshore population; and we might very well slide over the line or through the line or something. That's just the concern on the part of our anglers. This is an important species for them that is targeted; and we just wanted to make that they brought their concerns to the council and folks had a chance to hear that.

There may be some options the state chooses to follow, which would include perhaps coming back to the council and trying to see if we could do something prior to another stock assessment. As a council, we need to act for the whole stock or whatever based on an assessment. It may seem kind of like a local concern, but it is a concern that local fishermen are seeing about their fish and fishing practices.

Keep in mind even our DPS, the Port Royal fish and all, if you noticed from the tagging, they go down and mix or populate that blank spot off of Florida; so our fish don't stay — what we call "our fish" don't stay in our waters. They go other places, so there is movement. This is mainly for informational purposes. You will hear a little bit more about it tonight, but it could very well be that there is interest at the state level and coming back to the council at some point here and asking for some help with some additional conservation measures, perhaps.

DR. LANEY: Well, yes, it may be a local stock in a geographic sense, but I think the council has to think about genetic diversity here as well. If you've got DPSs already designated, I would think that's a topic of interest to the council is trying to maintain the genetic diversity that's out there.

I would only point to the northeast and New England Groundfish Fisheries and those cod stocks up there that everybody thought I guess for a long time it was all just one big uniform stock. As it became evident that a lot of the inshore cod populations were not rebounding, people began to realize, well, maybe that's because there were a whole lot of localized genetic stocks there that we didn't understand at first; so they were kind of neglected from a management standpoint.

I think here we have an early heads-up that you do have a genetically distinct population inshore; and it looks like maybe a couple more, one in Chesapeake Bay at least; and then two more offshore, one in the Gulf of Mexico that kind of comes around the Florida Peninsula; and the other in the South Atlantic.

There are at least four different groups of fish there; and I think the council would be certainly concerned about trying to maintain and conserve the genes in all of those populations. So even though, yes, it is a local South Carolina issue and as Mel pointed out, those fish do go down to the east coast of Florida. Somehow we need to consider our obligation as a council to not only maintain the populations sustainable from a numbers and weight perspective but also from a genetic perspective, I think.

MR. McDONOUGH: I can add a little to that in that I didn't show it, but there is additional tag data from Virginia, from Florida; both off Brevard County and down in the Keys that supports

the movement in terms of where you've got that large mixing zones essentially from Canaveral up to the Georgia/South Carolina Border or a little bit further south.

You know, the fish that are tagged off Florida, especially off the east coast of Florida, go all over the place. The ones in the Keys pretty much stay in the Gulf, but never go above Canaveral, say; and then the fish in Virginia are just moving up and down and that South Atlantic stock mixed in. There is further support besides just the genetic data. For brevities sake, I didn't show it.

MR. BROWN: I participated in the SEDAR and I talked to Mike Denson; and we talked about the DNA studies and the movement of the fish and everything. I found it interesting how some of them indicated the movement east and west and some of them was north and south at certain times of the year.

It seemed like they were starting to really narrow down on the exact time when these were spawning. It seemed like the window was getting shorter and starting to understand exactly when those fish were going to spawn. Also, the movement; it seemed like they were going to specific areas, too.

As an option in the future and when we start talking about these SMZs and stuff, I think that we need to also look at maybe spawning time closures kind of like what we have with the snapper grouper, maybe. When we're starting to understand more when these fish are spawning and getting a tighter frame on exactly when that is happening, maybe that would be an idea rather than creating an SMZ or closing the bottom; just having a closure for that species during that timeframe.

MR. HARTIG: Mike, do you have something>

DR. ERRIGO: I just wanted to mention one other thing about during the presentation you saw that the CPUE Index was very flat across a lot of it, which if it follows all the assumptions, you would say, well, it looks like the population is pretty steady. It goes up and down from year to year, but overall it is not really trending anywhere.

The one issue there is that during the data workshop we spoke to a lot of the – we spoke to some fishermen and some other people involved in the cobia fishery in South Carolina and other areas, but especially in South Carolina because I was dealing with the Charterboat Index. They said that during that peak when they go out and really target cobia, first of all, they know where to go and they're hitting them in these big groups and these aggregations.

This is one of the issues with only having fishery-dependent indices. If you're fishing on an aggregation, the population may be suffering and it may be getting smaller, but your index is going to remain constant because you're fishing on an aggregation. Even if there is less fish out there, they're all coming to the same place; and you fish on them; so even if the number of fish is smaller and smaller, you still know if I go here I can still get my fish; so your catch-per-unit effort stays fairly constant until the population crashes and that area disappears.

This is what happened in the northeast with cod or that is the theory is that everything was good until those areas disappeared and then all of a sudden there was no cod and they never came back; and what happened; last year was good, this year I got nothing. That was one of the issues with the index that is nice and flat.

MR. BROWN: And to that, Mike, too, I think that supports the fact of maybe trying to let them do their thing during their time. Especially when you see those big aggregations like that, that is why that has happened. If we can identify the timeframe and bring it down to a window to where those are just off limits, then maybe we're going to be having a positive result in the future.

MR. HARTIG: Well, I think it has been a lot of good discussion and the presentation was excellent. I appreciate that; and, Mel, certainly keep us informed of what continues to happen in South Carolina. We'll see where this goes. At a time you want to develop an option paper for this, let us know when you want to bring it forward to the council. That will conclude the business if there aren't any other pressing questions for the Mackerel Committee. We do have one other item of other business. Doug, do you have something?

MR. HAYMANS: I thought you wrote it down when I mentioned it as you opened the committee. I was just going to give you a quick report on the tournament sales. Since we just issued on July 16 when we had 20A go into effect, we've had four tournaments in Georgia since that point.

Although participation seems to be up, the catches were not in total number nor the size. We got less than 200 fish out of those four tournaments. There is one small issue that was centered around the dealers being the one who divvy out the proceeds back to the non-profits. Neither the dealer nor the tournaments are very comfortable with that. The dealers just don't want to do it.

At some point in the future, after we've got a few years under our belts and other states have had a chance to weigh in on it, maybe we'll look at tweaking that just a little bit. I do appreciate North Carolina sharing their tournament permit with me. I built it based off of their permit and it is working as far as the tournaments registered and the dealers reporting.

MR. HARTIG: I appreciate that. Any questions for Doug? That was some interesting information; and I look forward to hearing more from you as we proceed down this path. The only other item I have is that in the Drift Gillnet Small Coastal Shark Fishery, we have an allowance for those – we had an allowance for those fishermen to be able to keep the bag limit of king mackerel that they caught incidentally in that fishery and they were able to sell it.

Since we've prohibited recreational sales, we're not quite sure what happens to those fishermen. They have a king mackerel permit, but they were operating under a recreational bag limit to be able to sell those fish. I have asked Monica to research a little bit; and I'm not sure if she was able or not; she has been so darned busy during this meeting. Monica.

MS. SMIT-BRUNELLO: Well, my crack team back at the office and I looked into this. A drift gillnet is not an authorized gear for king mackerel; and under the Coastal Migratory Pelagic

Regulations if a vessel has unauthorized gear, it is subject to the bag limits. Those shark drift gillnet fishermen can have the bag limit of king mackerel, but they may not sell it because you cannot sell. Under 20A, as you know, you can't sell fish harvested under the bag limit.

If you wanted to allow them to sell it, you would have to make an exception for them to sell it. Now, one of the factors – and I think you've talked about it – is they have a commercial king mackerel permit; so they would, if you made an exception, be allowed to sell if that is what you choose to do. They can possess it but they can't sell it.

DR. DUVAL: That seems a little unfair because they're engaged in a commercial fishing activity. They have the king mackerel permit. I understand that it's not an authorized gear; but in order to release dead discards, presumably that's why the allowance for the bag limit was there in the first place or is it just an unauthorized gear provision that allows you to keep that bag limit?

MS. SMIT-BRUNELLO: Before Amendment 20A, you could sell your bag limit harvest of king mackerel. I think that is what happened; when 20A went in, it eliminated the bag limit sales; and since these fishermen, because they have unauthorized gear, can only have the bag limit, they cannot sell those fish caught under the bag limit. I'm not sure why that exception was made for unauthorized gear way back when or not; but that's the way I read the regulations.

MR. HARTIG: Yes; and that's the important thing is how you interpret the regulations and how we have to rectify this as we move forward. It was to address the bycatch that they had in that fishery. It was to reduce discards of king mackerel being thrown into the water; being counted under the quota so we could account for those animals as well as not having to have waste in the fishery. Michelle.

DR. DUVAL: Yes; I guess it still seems a little odd because previously the commercial permit was required only to possess more than the bag limit. With 20A we required the permit in order to sell your fish, period, so these guys have the permit, right, the commercial king mackerel permit. It seems like it is almost a semantic issue of them selling their bag limit because they actually have the permit. I understand what you're saying about we would have to allow an exemption for that. It just seems unfair if they already have the commercial permit.

MS. SMIT-BRUNELLO: Well, that's why it took a little time to try to figure this out because that was my first thought, too, is they have a commercial permit so they can sell. The fact is they have a kind of gear that you said you cannot use to harvest king mackerel; and so because they have that unauthorized gear, you've limited them to the bag limit.

If you read all the regulations together, we think it reads that, okay, you have the bag limit; you're allowed to have that, but you can't sell it. If you wanted to make an exception, I was just quickly looking at the framework to see whether this could be done via a framework or even an abbreviated framework measure; and I have finished that analysis yet, so I'm not sure.

MR. HARTIG: Is it possible by tomorrow that we could know that?

MS. SMIT-BRUNELLO: Certainly.

MR. HARTIG: Okay, because that would help. I know we've got the no new amendments, but it is important. These king mackerel, where those guys are catching, they're worth four dollars a pound now at the time of the year when they're catching them. Even though it is a reduced number of fish, it more than pays for their fuel; so it is important. Charlie.

MR. PHILLIPS: Is the recreational bag limit going to cover all of the discards or will they need a different amount of fish to cover the discards?

MR. HARTIG: Well, that's interesting. They have had observers on them, so we could look at that information and see. Monica.

MS. SMIT-BRUNNELO: Well, it is not exactly to that point; and this may be a silly question, but I assume they're harvesting the king mackerel with this unauthorized gear while they're harvesting sharks; so they're allowed to have that gear for sharks, and is that how they're harvesting the king mackerel?

MR. HARTIG: Yes; they're catching the king mackerel in the same gear that they're catching their sharks; so, yes.

MS. SMIT-BRUNELLO: So, to Charlie's point, then, there is probably more than – well, so the bag limit is what the bag limit is, but it could be that they're catching more king mackerel than just the bag limit.

MR. HARTIG: Yes; it could; and it does happen on occasion where they do. In recent years they have not caught that many on normal trips. I have a little bit more fish this year, which was encouraging because we've been looking for a new year class; and I caught some of these fish; so they have quite a few more. Michelle.

DR. DUVAL: Yes; and so I guess I wouldn't want see that changed because you don't want it to become a directed fishery. You just want to allow these guys – they are legally permitted; they have the commercial permit; they have been able to sell this bycatch in the past; to simply to be able to continue to do that. I'm not sure I would be in favor of like modifying how many fish they can retain because you don't want to create that incentive for the directed fishery. You just want to be able to legally use their permit that they already have.

MR. HARTIG: And, Charlie, that was the reason why we left it at the bag limit, because this was a gear we prohibited; and then they turned right around and said we're catching small coastal sharks with it. The council gave them the bag limit allowance to allow them to have some sale under a very limited condition and not to try target.

Actually, at four dollars a pound, you start increasing this and then you will get a targeted fishery. These guys know pretty much where these lanes of king mackerel migrate through, and they can and have said to me that they can stay out of the areas where you catch most of the king mackerel and still have a shark catch. Mark.

MR. BROWN: I don't think there is a huge overage either because they are targeting a specific species; and you are going to encounter some of the other things along with it. I just think it is a waste if you're not going to allow them to be able to do what they're licensed to do; and that is to commercial fish. You can only eat so many king mackerel.

MR. HARTIG: Well, you can only have so many on the boat; so you would have to discard any over and above however many crew you had. Still, I agree with Michelle that when we put these regulations in effect, it was a way to keep it from becoming a targeted fishery. What is the will of the committee?

How would we move forward? It sounds like we don't know yet, so let's wait until full council and Monica gives the definition of whether we can do it under framework or it would have to be a plan amendment. Zack, do you have one more thing?

MR. BOWEN: Yes, sir, I just have a question. I'm not part of this fishery at all, but what is the average crew size of these trips? Are we talking one person or two so that's three fish or six fish. What are the numbers?

MR. HARTIG: I think it is probably around two or three and probably three. Some of these boats aren't as big as others. Some may have four on occasion.

MR. BOWEN: So nine to twelve fish per day?

MR. HARTIG: Probably eight max; two per person; eight fish maximum for the maximum larger boat. There aren't many large boats left anymore. Mostly it is these 30- to 35-foot boats now. The whole fishery has changed as we've gone through this; and the boats are smaller and they set their nets differently and they don't have as much gear.

They have cut their bycatch on mackerels because of the gear changes; and some of them actually anchor their gear now, and that has cut down on the bycatch of king mackerel. They have made a number of changes to try and cut down on that bycatch. All right, we'll come back to that full council. Are you all okay over there?

MS. SMIT-BRUNELLO: As well as can be expected; yes, thank you.

MR. HARTIG: All right, is there any other business to come before the Mackerel Committee? Seeing none; let's adjourn the Mackerel Committee.

(Whereupon, the meeting was adjourned at 11:30 o'clock a.m., September 18, 2014.)

Certified By:	Date	:

Transcribed By: Graham Transcriptions, Inc. October 7, 2014

South Atlantic Fishery Management Council 2014 Council Membership

COUNCIL CHAIRMAN:

Ben Hartig

9277 Sharon Street Hobe Sound, FL 33455 772/546-1541 (ph) mackattackben@att.net

VICE-CHAIRMAN

Dr. Michelle Duval

NC Division of Marine Fisheries 3441 Arendell St. (PO Box 769) Morehead City, NC 28557 252/808-8011 (ph); 252/726-0254 (f) michelle.duval@ncdenr.gov

Robert E. Beal

Executive Director Atlantic States Marine Fisheries Commission 1050 N. Highland St., Suite 200 A-N Arlington, VA 20001 703/842-0740 (ph); 703/842-0741 (f) rbeal@asmfc.org

Mel Bell

S.C. Dept. of Natural Resources Marine Resources Division P.O. Box 12559 (217 Ft. Johnson Road) Charleston, SC 29422-2559 843/953-9007 (ph) 843/953-9159 (fax) bellm@dnr.sc.gov

Anna Beckwith

1907 Paulette Road Morehead City, NC 28557 252/671-3474 (ph) AnnaBarriosBeckwith@gmail.com

Zack Bowen

P.O. Box 30825 Savannah, GA 31410 912/398-3733 (ph) fishzack@comcast.net

W. Chester Brewer

250 Australian Ave. South Suite 1400 West Palm Beach, FL 33408 561/655-4777 (ph) WCBLAW@aol.com

Mark Brown

3642 Pandora Drive Mt. Pleasant, SC 29466 843/881-9735 (ph); 843/881-4446 (f) capt.markbrown@comcast.net

Chris Conklin

P.O. Box 972 Murrells Inlet, SC 29576 843/543-3833 conklincc@gmail.com

Jack Cox

2010 Bridges Street Morehead City, NC 28557 252/728-9548 Dayboat1965@gmail.com

Dr. Roy Crabtree

Regional Administrator NOAA Fisheries, Southeast Region 263 13th Avenue South St. Petersburg, FL 33701 727/824-5301 (ph), 727/824-5320 (f) roy.crabtree@noaa.gov

LT Morgan Fowler

U.S. Coast Guard 510 SW 11th Court Fort Lauderdale FL 33315 morgan.m.fowler@uscg.mil

Doug Haymans

Coastal Resources Division GA Dept. of Natural Resources One Conservation Way, Suite 300 Brunswick, GA 31520-8687 912/264-7218 (ph); 912/262-2318 (f) doughaymans@gmail.com

Deirdre Warner-Kramer

Office of Marine Conservation
OES/OMC
2201 C Street, N.W.
Department of State, Room 5806
Washington, DC 20520
202/647-3228 (ph); 202/736-7350 (f)
Warner-KramerDM@state.gov

Dr. Wilson Laney

U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service
South Atlantic Fisheries Coordinator
P.O. Box 33683
Raleigh, NC 27695-7617
(110 Brooks Ave
237 David Clark Laboratories,
NCSU Campus
Raleigh, NC 27695-7617)
919/515-5019 (ph)
919/515-4415 (f)
Wilson_Laney@fws.gov

Jessica McCawley

Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission 2590 Executive Center Circle E., Suite 201 Tallahassee, FL 32301 850/487-0554 (ph); 850/487-4847(f) jessica.mccawley@myfwc.com

Charles Phillips

Phillips Seafood / Sapelo Sea Farms 1418 Sapelo Avenue, N.E. Townsend, GA 31331 912/832-4423 (ph); 912/832-6228 (f) Ga_capt@yahoo.com

MONDELA SMET-BRUNELLO
BOUNDE PONDETH
PHIL STEELE
KENIN ANSON
SCOTT SANDORF
PAT O'SHAUGHNESSY
JESSICA STEPHEN
JEFF RADONSKI
CHRTS McDONOUGH

South Atlantic Fishery Management Council 2014 Committees

ADVISORY PANEL SELECTION

Doug Haymans, Chair Chester Brewer Chris Conklin Jack Cox Ben Hartio

Staff contact: Kim Iverson

CATCH SHARES

Ben Hartig, Chair Zack Bowen Chris Conklin Jack Cox Doug Haymans Robert Beal, ASMFC Representative Staff contact:

Kari MacLauchlin / Brian Cheuvront

DATA COLLECTION

Mel Bell, Chair
Jack Cox
Roy Crabtree
Michelle Duval
Wilson Laney
Jessica McCawley
Staff contact: Gregg Waugh

DOLPHIN WAHOO

Anna Beckwith, Chair
Zack Bowen
Chester Brewer
Mark Brown
Doug Haymans
Mid-Atlantic Liaison, Pres Pate
Staff contact: Brian Cheuvront

ECOSYSTEM-BASED

MANAGEMENT

Doug Haymans, Chair Anna Beckwith Chris Conklin Michelle Duval Wilson Laney Jessica McCawley Charlie Phillips

Robert Beal, ASMFC Representative Staff contact: Roger Pugliese- FEP

Gregg Waugh - CEBA

EXECUTIVE/FINANCE

Ben Hartig, Chair Michelle Duval, Vice Chair Jessica McCawley Charlie Phillips

Staff contact: Bob Mahood

GOLDEN CRAB

Ben Hartig, Vice-Chair Chester Brewer Mark Brown Roy Crabtree Jessica McCawley Staff contact: Brian Cheuvront

HABITAT & ENVIRONMENTAL

PROTECTION
Wilson Laney, Chair
Anna Beckwith
Chester Brewer
Chris Conklin
LT Morgan Fowler
Doug Haymans
Charlie Phillips

Robert Beal, ASMFC Representative Staff contact: Roger Pugliese

Gregg Waugh - Coral

HIGHLY MIGRATORY SPECIES

Anna Beckwith, Acting Chair Zack Bowen Chester Brewer Mark Brown Staff contact: Brian Cheuvront

INFORMATION & EDUCATION

Anna Beckwith, Chair
Mel Bell
Zack Bowen
Chester Brewer
Chris Conklin
LT Morgan Fowler
Staff contact: Amber Von Harten

and the second second

KING & SPANISH MACKEREL

Ben Hartig, Chair
Anna Beckwith
Mel Bell
Zack Bowen
Mark Brown
Jack Cox
Roy Crabtree
Michelle Duval

Doug Haymans

✓Jessica McCawley ✓Charlie Phillips

Robert Beal, ASMFC Representative

✓Mid-Atlantic Liaison, Pres Pate
Staff contact: Kari MacLauchlin

LAW ENFORCEMENT

Mel Bell, Chair Chris Conklin Jack Cox LT Morgan Fowler Ben Hartig

Staff contact: Myra Brouwer

PERSONNEL

Jessica McCawley, Chair Michelle Duval – Vice Chair Mel Bell Mark Brown Ben Hartig Charlie Phillips Staff contact: Bob Mahood

PROTECTED RESOURCES

Wilson Laney, Vice Chair Anna Beckwith Mark Brown Michelle Duval LT Morgan Fowler Staff contact: Kari MacLauchlin

SCI. & STAT. SELECTION

Michelle Duval, Chair
Mel Bell
Chester Brewer
Roy Crabtree
Doug Haymans
Wilson Laney
Staff contact: John Carmichael

SEDAR

Ben Hartig, Chair Zack Bowen Jack Cox Michelle Duval Charlie Phillips Robert Beal, ASMFC Representative

Robert Beal, ASMFC Representative Staff contact: John Carmichael

SHRIMP

Charlie Phillips, Chair Mel Bell Roy Crabtree Wilson Laney Jessica McCawley Staff contact: Gregg Waugh

(Continued)

South Atlantic Fishery Management Council Staff

Executive Director
Robert K. Mahood

robert.mahood@safmc.net

Deputy Executive Director

Gregg T. Waugh gregg.waugh@safmc.net

Public Information Officer

Kim Iverson kim.iverson@safmc.net

Fishery Outreach Specialist

-Amber Von Harten amber.vonharten@safmc.net

Senior Fishery Biologist

Roger Pugliese roger.pugliese@safmc.net

Fishery Scientist

Myra Brouwer myra.brouwer@safmc.net

Fishery Biologist

Dr. Mike Errigo mike.errigo@safmc.net

Fisheries Social Scientist

∕Dr. Kari MacLauchlin kari.maclauchlin@safmc.net

Fishery Scientist

∕Chip Collier Chip.Collier@safmc.net

Staff Economist

Dr. Brian Cheuvront
brian.cheuvront@safmc.net

Science and Statistics Program Manager

John Carmichael لر

john.carmichael@safmc.net

SEDAR Coordinators

Dr. Julie Neer - julie.neer@safmc.net

Julia Byrd – julia.byrd@safmc.net

Administrative Officer

Mike Collins mike.collins@safmc.net

Financial Secretary

Debra Buscher deb.buscher@safmc.net

Admin. Secretary /Travel Coordinator

Cindy Chaya cindy.chaya@safmc.net

Purchasing & Grants

ปนlie O'Dell

julie.odell@safmc.net

PLEASE SIGN IN

In order to have a record of your attendance at each meeting and your name included in the minutes, we ask that you sign this sheet for the meeting shown below.

King and Spanish Mackerel Committee Meeting: South Atlantic Fishery Management Council Meeting

Thursday, September 18, 2014

	(Juis Medonoghe Sc	Henry Fea AP	Lora Clarke R		DICK BRAME C	Trip Aukeman CCA	Jessica Stenland SERO	Susan Susana	PAT OSWINGHVETH NOAA OLE	NAME & SECTOR/ORGANIZATION:
7 + 20 + 15 + 15 + 15 + 15 + 15 + 15 + 15 + 1	KINP.		RES	C EZU	C C D	7	28 RC	į		
386-234-0948	643-963-9231	712830691						912.222-920%	727 824 - 5358	AREA CODE & PHONE NUMBER:
Ines los apoocts	Medaneryhredus, sc, for		Idarke apew musts org	ehelmich pontrutto			U	Suser Shipmenco att. net	PANICU. OSHNUHJESSY RNOPA. GOU	EMAIL ADDRESS:
32120-9357	25.50	(OG O	JAJ: OX				2	76.	MAILING ADDRESS:

South Atlantic Fishery Management Council 4055 Faber Place Drive, Suite 201 North Charleston, SC 29405 843-571-4366 or Toll Free 866/SAFMC-10

PLEASE SIGN IN

In order to have a record of your attendance at each meeting and your name included in the minutes, we ask that you sign this sheet for the meeting shown below.

King and Spanish Mackerel Committee Meeting: South Atlantic Fishery Management Council Meeting Thursday, September 18, 2014

NAME & SECTOR/ORGANIZATION: AREA CODE & PHONE NUMBER:

EMAIL ADDRESS:

MAILING ADDRESS:

			Jan Ballenin Score	Wally Bublin STNO	1 Censhine To 1=
				843-953-9816	202-294-9520
				bluge dnr.sc.gov	Kstma@oceanfan.ora

South Atlantic Fishery Management Council 4055 Faber Place Drive, Suite 201 North Charleston, SC 29405 843-571-4366 or Toll Free 866/SAFMC-10